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REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR DISCOVERY
OF MATERIALS RELATED TO SELECTIVE PROSECUTION

Dr. Lee, through undersigned counsel, respectfully submits this reply memorandum in

support of his motion for discovery of materials related to selective prosecution.
Dr. Lee's discovery motion set forth direct evidence that Dr. Lee was targeted for

prosecution because he is "ethnic Chinese." Under United States v. Ammstrong, 517 U.S. 456

(1996), these admissions from officials involved in his criminal prosecution satisfy entirely Dr.
Lee’s burden for obtaining discovery. Dr. Lee, therefore. need not show that similarly-situated
persons who were not "ethnic-Chinese" have nat been prosecuted for the crimes with which he
was charged. Dr. Lee, nevertheless, has shown that no other person has ever been charged under
42 U.S.C. §§ 2275 & 2276, which carry potential sentences of life in prison.! Dr. Lee also cited
several similarly-situated individuals who have not been prosecuted under 18 U.S.C. § 793(c).

The government's Response makes the following arguments: 1) Dr. Lee's proof that the

' Additional instances of mishandling of classified information at LANL that did not result in the
prosecution of individuals who are not ethnic-Chinese are described in the Classified Addendum

to the Reply Memorandum in Suppart of the Motion For Discovery on issues Related to
Selective Prosecution on file with the Court.



government engaged in improper racial profiling of ethnic-Chinese was deficient; 2) even if Dr.

Lee has shown that the government engaged in racial protiling. such profiling is permissible: 3)
even if the go:fcﬁime-nt's racial profiling in connectior with the "Kindred Spirit" espionage
investigation were improper, Dr. Lee's indictment for violations of 42 U.S.C. §§ 2275 and 2276
was a separate, untainted case; and 4) even though Dr. Lee is the only person ever charged under
§§ 2275 & 2276, he has not been improperly singled out because no similarly-situated person
ever violated these two statutes. This Reply will refute each of these arguments in turn. First.
however, Dr. Lee will set out two additional declarations which prove that Dr. Lee was subjected
to improper profiling; that this profiling ied to his indictment on the charges here: and that the

declarants are personally aware of similarly-situated individuals who have not been prosecuted::i

A. Vrooman's Declaration And Charles Washington's Declaration Prove That Dr. Lee Has
Met His Burden Under Armstrong to Obtain Discovery

The government argued that Mr. Vrooman's declaration shouid not be considered
because it was not signed under penalty of perjury. Response at 8. Attached to this Reply is a
sworn declaration from Vrooman in which he reaffirms under penaity of perjury his earlier
statement, and also provides additional proof that Dr. Lee was improperly singied out for
prosecution. See Ex. 1, Second Declaration of Vrooman. First, Vrooman refutes FBI SA
Messemer’s claim that the "matrix" used to target Dr. Lee was based on travel to the PRC and
access to W-88 inform'a-tion. rather than primarily on racial profiling. See Messemer Decl. at 9

3a. Vrooman rejects Messemer's false statement and declares that "hundreds of individuals who

shared those characteristics were not chosen for investigation . . . It is my firm belief that the



actual reasonDr7 Lee was selected for investigation was because he was ethnic Chinese.”’ See

Ex. 1 at93. Vrooman the_"n refutes the govemment’s claim that it was appropriate to target
Chinese-Americaiis f(-)r-espionage invoiving the PRC because these Chinese-Americans are more
likely to be contacted by the PRC. As Vrooman states: "[t was our experience that Chinese
intelligence officials contacted everyone from the laboratories with a nuclear weapons
background who visited China for information, regardless of ethnicity.” Ex. | a1 9 4.

Vrooman also rejects the government’s unsupported assertion that targeting Chinese-
Americans for espionage investigations furthered some rational law enforcement purpose.
Vrooman states that he is "unaware of any empirical data that would support any inference that
an American citizen-bomn in Taiwan would be miore likely than any other American

Ex. l at 4. Vrooman also makes clear that he was personally aware of -
similarly-situated individuals who were not prosecuted by DQJ, including a DOE emplovee
working at a nucl;:ar laboratory who committed espionage by passing nuclear-related information
to the Russians, but whose prosecution was declined in exchange for a debriefing as to the
nuclear secrets he had passed. Ex. | at § 8.

The government also argued that this Court should not consider that Charles Washington.

the former Acting Director of Counterintelligence at the DOE, had told the Washington Post that

Dr. Lee was targeted for prosecution because he was ethnic-Chinese. Response at 8. Attached is

* Vrooman also notes that he has observed FBI SA Messemer "distort information" and that other
FBI agents have told him that FBI SA Messemer engages in such distortion. Vrooman's
observations, made under penaity of perjury, are consistent with the defense's uncovering that
FBI SA Messemer provided false testimony to this Court at two bail hearings. The government
has argued that this false testimony was a mistake by FBI SA Messemer.

3












































































































































































































































































































